
 

 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny 
Commission 

 
Thursday 22 February 2024 

7.00 pm 
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 

 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Chloe Tomlinson (Chair) 
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor Joseph Vambe 
Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese 
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted member) 
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer (Co-opted member) 
Jonathan Clay (Co-opted member) 
Marcin Jagodzinski (Co-opted member) 
 

Councillor Maggie Browning 
Councillor Bethan Roberts 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Victoria Mills 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Sunil Chopra 
Councillor Adam Hood 
 

 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this 
agenda as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these 
reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your 
children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect 
a claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For details on 
building access, translation, provision of signers or any other requirements for this 
meeting, please contact the person below. 

Contact 
Amit Alva on email: amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk     

Open Agenda

mailto:amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk


 

 
 

 
 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Althea Loderick 
Chief Executive 
Date: 14 February 2024 
 

 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny 
Commission 

 
 

Thursday 22 February 2024 
7.00 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 

 
 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 

 

 PART A OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an 
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS. 
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

1 - 12 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 
30 January 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

5. REPORT REVIEWING AMALGAMATION OF BIRD IN BUSH 
SCHOOL 

 

13 - 16 

 To hear from James Robinson, Executive Head teacher, Bird in 
Bush School and to receive a report from Richard Hunter, Principal 
Advisor, Education, Learning and Achievement on amalgamation of 
Bird in Bush school. 
 

 

6. INTERVIEW WITH CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN, 
EDUCATION & REFUGEES. 

 

17 - 46 

 To interview Councillor Jasmine Ali on key strategies and projects 
under her Cabinet Member Portfolio; and also to receive reports and 
verbal updates on  
 

 Schools Funding including nurseries 

 Overview of maintained nurseries by demand in wards 
(report to follow) 

 Overview of SEND Strategy including Under 5 provision in 
nurseries (verbal update/questions)  

 
Supported by officers Kate Bingham, Schools Finance Consultant, 
Neil Gordon-Orr, Strategic Manager Education and Anna Chiva 
Asst. Director for SEND 
 

 

7. WORK PROGRAMME 2023-2024 
 

47 - 56 

 To note the commission’s work programme for the year 2023-2024. 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT 
THE START OF THE MEETING. 
 

 

 
Date:  14 February 2024 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 



1 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission 
 

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Education and Local Economy Scrutiny 
Commission held on Tuesday 30 January 2024 at 7.00 pm at Ground Floor 
Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH  
 

 

PRESENT: Councillor Chloe Tomlinson (Chair) 
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese 
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted Member) 
Jonathan Clay (Co-opted Member) 
Marcin Jagodzinski (Co-opted Member) 
 
 

OTHER 
MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 
 

  
Councillor Martin Seaton 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

  
Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Joseph Vambe. 
 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS 
URGENT  

 

 The Chair informed the commission that the urgent item on the proposed 
amalgamation of St. Jude's and Charlotte Sharman primary schools has been 
withdrawn due an on-going consultation on the merger. This item will be looked at 
substantively at a future meeting and hear from both schools. 
 
The Chair has also informed the commission that she will be giving a brief update 
on Kintore Way (KW) nursery school which has been circulated at the meeting. 
(Attached to minutes appendix.1) 
 
There will be an update on St. Mary’s Magdalene School (SMMS) at future 
meetings. 

Open Agenda
1

Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS.  
 

 There were no disclosures of interests and dispensations. 
 

4. MINUTES  
 

 The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2023 and 19 October 2023 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 

5. PROPOSED AMALGAMATION OF ST. JUDE'S AND CHARLOTTE SHARMAN 
PRIMARY SCHOOLS  

 

 This item was withdrawn as mentioned in notification of any items which the chair 
deems urgent. 
 

6. IMPACT OF SCHOOL CLOSURES AND AMALGAMATIONS - HUMAN 
RESOURCES DATA (Pages 12 - 13) 

 

 Chair’s update on KW nursery school (attached appendix 1.) 
 

 Thirteen staff redundancies took place on 31 December 2023, significant 

impact on children especially with regards to Special Needs and 

Educational Disabilities (SEND) provision 

 Need for early years strategy for SEND provision, however positive signs, 

council’s acknowledgement of the work needed in this area. 

 Overall national issue with funding for nurseries and SEND provision in 

nurseries; next meeting agenda would include these topics. 

 Currently creating a budget deficit recovery plan over a 5 year period 

 
The commission then received a report from Alasdair Smith, Director of Children & 
Families, Children's and Adults' Services and Shereen Moussa, Head of Schools 
Human Resources, Children's and Adults' Services on the impact of school 
closures and amalgamations (HR schools data) covering the following points 
 

 Report pt. 5 lists types of schools maintained by Local Authority (LA) with 
the exclusion of academies and free schools 

 Multi-layered legal framework (education law) for educational operation in 
schools in addition to equalities, employment law and data protection etc. 

 Schools have day to day responsibility for data protection management, LA 
having very little control 

 
 

2



3 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

 Data provided is a combination of schools works census data and HR 
schools advisory service which schools can opt in to, 60 schools have opted 
in; Data provided anonymously to protect confidentiality 

 Section 23 provides the impact of school closures and amalgamation, and 
council’s ‘Keeping Education Strong’ strategy to mitigate the impact 

 Only protected characteristics data (pt. 26-31) of age, gender, ethnicity and 
disability are collected by schools 

 The exercise as a result of this report has led to changes in data collection 
forms for schools. 

 Varying levels of redundancies in different schools; varying levels in 
ethnicity data; gypsy, roma, white British, white- Irish  and non-white ethnic 
groups 

 Gender data suggests women proportionately more represented than men 
in schools 

 Disabilities data vary from 6% in one school to no disabilities in other 
schools and some people opting preferring not to say 

 Mitigating impact on support staff jobs- admin, catering, cleaners, 
supervisors and also other full time jobs such as teaching assistants. 

 Influencing and supporting schools and governing boards in minimising the 
impact of redundancies by helping staff find alternative employment through 
HR workshops (job hunting and upskilling) with Job Centre plus. 

 Working with schools, trade unions and external service providers for finding 
jobs for redundant staff; advertising jobs from schools outside the borough 
like Kent 

 Schools independently manage day to day HR processes with regards to 
disciplinary to avoid it turning into a formal hearing; 4 out of 5 disciplinary 
cases listed in the report are Black British which is a cause for concern, 
underpinning data shows varying levels of ethnicity 

 Efforts being made to ensure Governance panels and council’s HR 
business partners are from diverse backgrounds; also ensuring all 
necessary steps are taken prior to any formal hearing for dismissal 

 Managing and mitigating issues linked to women of a certain age 
(menopausal) with regards to behaviour and performance; working with 
trade unions and Department Level Committee (DLC) issuing menopausal 
guidance  

 Working with schools to identify training needs linked to disciplinary cases 
and ensuring such issues are managed in a diverse way 

 Flexible working (pt. 102 -104) legislation dictates a minimum period of 26 
weeks prior to applying for a flexible working request, one request a year; 
New legislation coming into force allows employees to make a request from 
day one and shortens the employer response time to 2 months to 3 months 
previously; and also employee not asked to reflect on what the impact would 
be on the employer; two applications a year are now allowed 

 Governance in schools; no equalities data for governance in schools, on-
going work with governing boards and anti-racist training to be delivered to 
governors as a part of Southwark Stands Together in governing boards. 

 Senior Leadership - As a part of Southwark Stands Together (SST) 
professional curriculum group working with Senior Education Adviser David 
Brumfield, teachers and LA officers to increase representation of Black 
leaders. 

3



4 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

 Working with trade unions to create a strategy to reduce inequalities by 
sharing their best practices; Southwark council endorsed UNISON Race 
Charter; action plan for next steps with senior leaders 
 

The commission then asked questions on the following themes 
 

 Main issue/s that could be resolved by looking at systems, processes and 
service strategically; also looking at governing bodies and senior leadership 

 Redeployment for recent redundancies at KW school; Possible red flags in 
the report; safeguarding complaints and processes for written response 

 Strategic issues and priorities within the report; and steps taken to manage 
them; 100 % ethnic group data not adding up in report; pt. 8 School staffing 
population, Governance board for appointed, management and dismissal of 
staff seeming to be operational and not strategic 
 

Shereen explained to the commission that the HR schools team within the council 
is diverse and always discussing better ways to solve issues by learning from past 
experiences. The main challenge is mitigating the impact of the uncertainty around 
school closures and amalgamation on school staff, ensuring there is a framework 
for staff support and clear communication. Partnership working within the 
professional curriculum group is core to resolving issues at governance and senior 
leadership levels.  
 
The commission noted that 19.4% of school staff are Black-British and 80% of 
disciplinary is Black-British in the past year. Officer agreed to provide data for the 
past 3-4 years at future meetings. 
 
The Chair explained to the commission that the data on Black members of staff 
corroborates with the information and experiences heard from teachers and school 
staff; that Black members of staff have been disproportionately affected by 
disciplinary; this raises questions of in-equalities and it’s important that 
safeguarding controls are put in place to avoid such occurrences. The Chair also 
requested that officers provide all redundancy data going back 3-4 years on all LA 
maintained schools. 
 
Shereen informed the commission that Council have worked with schools to 
manage the redundancy processes, however there were staff who took voluntary 
redundancy; which is a different process. As part of the consultation, staff have 
had 1 to 1’s, where they could consider redeployment. 
 
The commission learnt from Shereen that disciplinary data has been biggest 
concern in the report, the council are making efforts to communicate with schools 
on the overall management of staff prior to such disciplinary issues reaching the 
formal stages. Safeguarding complaints and action taken depends on the severity 
of the issues and are decided by the governing panel; also present are 
management and Union representatives, most severe cases could result in 
immediate dismissal. Efforts are made to ensure that governance panels are 
diverse, and any decision that governors make are based on investigations and 
facts. 
 

4



5 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

The Chair explained to the commission that from her past experiences that 
interpersonal relationships have an impact on informal disciplinary which could 
evolve in to formal disciplinary; and also that it’s important, governor panels and 
decision making bodies are diverse. 
 
Alasdair explained to the commission that since he has been in post as Director of 
Education since September 2023, and his main concern is the limited influence 
that LA has with influencing HR processes in schools, LA is only responsible in 
appointing the Governor of a school, the report only mirrors primary schools and 
we don’t have the complete picture as only 2 out of 20 secondary schools are LA 
maintained and even they don’t use the HR traded service with the LA. There is 
on-going work with ISOS (research and advisory company) in developing the 
‘Keeping Education Strong’ strategy in Southwark.  
 
The Chair and the commission noted that there is a need to ensure the governors 
and governance panels are diverse and representative of the schools’ 
demographic. 
 
 
Shereen explained to the commission that in LA maintained schools, decisions are 
delegated to governing boards through the delegation scheme; the governing body 
might choose to delegate the appointment of staff to Head teachers and senior 
leaders. In foundation and voluntary schools, the governing board being the sole 
employer is responsible for hiring and dismissals of staff. In community schools, 
the staff are employed through a council contract, however, the director would 
need to issue a letter on behalf of the governing board for disengaging a service; 
but ultimately the responsibility lies with the governing board. 
 

7. AN UPDATE ON EAST STREET MARKET RENOVATION PROJECT  
 

 The commission then heard from Lindon on the East Street Market renovation 
project 
 

 Team formed of local communities, traders and shop owners in September 

2023; funding received  from ‘Thriving High Street funds’ through the council 

 Part of team consists of members of the local residents mainly Black and 

African communities from various occupations such as urban architects, 

planners and Chief officers working with young people- anti-knife gangs and 

young entrepreneurs 

 Working and engaging with traders in regular meetings; market traders and 

shop owners to work together and pooling their resources 

 Capacity building workshops and skill building for traders and shop owners 

to self-manage and have equity in this initiative; public meetings with 

community and traders to discuss progress 

 Mystery shopping exercise including professional researchers to asses 

trading processes; traders and shop owners accepted the issues brought to 

5



6 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

light and are working together to take steps to take the market forward 

 Survey of footfall in the market with the help of young people including 

gender and ethnic demographics; 80% of customers Afro-Caribbean 

customers however only 15 stores to cater to their needs. 

 Housing redevelopment has created an influx of new customers who are not 

keen on visiting the market; meetings with marketing director of Lendlease 

revealed a need for attracting new customers by having new food offers, 

having night markets, weekday markets and family friendly markets. 

 Local churches have allowed spaces for crèche providing a safe place for 

kids while residents shop and providing teas and coffees for older residents 

 Lack of seating and toilets for elderly residents to be addressed with the 

help of churches. 

 Running an exercise in redesigning the market for benches, pedestrianising 

the market, permanent stores in place of parasols and gazebos; and 

introducing Wi-Fi and card machines for payments. 

The commission then asked questions on the following themes 
 

 Previously lack of support for the market; findings of mystery shoppers; 

Borough and Bankside movement from produce to street food causing 

overcrowding and causing local customers to go elsewhere;  

 Negative impacts of zoning market according to products; diversity of offers 

such as meat vans are not there anymore; plans to develop market; taxing 

process from council; need for standards agency working with traders; way 

–finding from other streets and updating frontages of shops 

Lindon informed the commission that current funding from Thriving High Streets 
Fund amounts to £12,800, however just under £4800 has been received for this 
initial stage which is quite less than needed. This initial work is being undertaken to 
assess where the market is and where it needs to be in the future. Mystery 
shopper found cleanliness issues, issue with displaying licenses for returns, not all 
food vendors are displaying health hygiene ratings. With the help of our urban 
designers and planners, zoning the market is being considered, keeping in mind 
customer journey through the market. Pricing and negotiations by customers and 
traders is also being looked at; traders are going for cheaper products for higher 
prices to increase profits.  
 
Lindon explained to the commission that the zoning of the market is a pilot scheme 
based on trial and error methods in having products and produce along a 
customer’s journey through the market. There is on-going work with Chartered 
accountants in educating and training traders with taxation processes to cover 
themselves legally. There are on-going plans for the market charter with regards to 
standards and rules which would be accompanied by rewards.  
 
Recent efforts by the team, has led to 100 of the 120 traders engaging in meetings; 
bringing them together with the constitution of the body and working to the 

6



7 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

progress the market in the right direction. There is need for council funding and it is 
understood that funds are limited, however council resources in kind would help in 
developing the East Street market renovation project. The issue with standards is 
due to barter practice by customers which leads to traders buying cheaper 
products. Further work needs to be done in educating customers on pricing and 
quality of products. There are options to liven up the market by having music, 
events and activities; another option would be to have partner system where 
traders pool their money together to buy products in wholesale. 
 
The commission also noted that traders at East Street are still struggling with 
higher rents, there has been some progress in council support through the High 
Street Funds however more needs to be done. Increase in footfall at the market is 
yet to be assessed. 
 

8. CABINET MEMBER INTERVIEW- JOBS SKILLS AND BUSINESS ( LOCAL 
ECONOMY)  

 

 The commission then heard from Councillor Martin Seaton and Danny Edwards on 
the following points of discussion 
 

 Programme support for businesses; High Growth and Low Emissions 

economy; Investment and Growth stream, Green Economy stream; Thriving 

High Street funding stream; Inclusive neighbourhood; Extending local 

ownership 

 Encourage and promote Southwark Youth Deal; Encouraging young people 

to take leadership positions; ensuring there is good quality work through 

working with trade unions; Flexible working for mothers with young children; 

better accessibility to work for disabled people; Opportunities for people 50 

years or older 

 Southwark is the best place to invest; forward thinking and prepared to work 

with industries of the future; Green Jobs target from last year of 2000 new 

green jobs currently at 1299 jobs as of last quarter, working with London 

South Bank University (LSBU) and Green hub, Southwark Colleges to 

identify green skills required to pipeline these jobs from schools and 

colleges 

 Apprenticeships, recent launch of Health and Innovation District in 2023 

named SE1, consisting of health and life sciences, projecting 15,000 new 

jobs; mainly in big digital, technology and pharmaceutical companies who 

are centred here for research and product development jobs meant for local 

people. This consists of Guys and St Thomas, Kings College, South London 

and Maudsley hospitals developing clinical trials 

The commission then asked questions on the following topics 
 

 Delivery plan of 2022-2026, target of getting 2500 Southwark residents 

into work; which are the growth sectors of jobs to meet these targets 

7



8 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

 Support for business like Plush who have been displaced in the south of 

the borough; Response to previous scrutiny recommendations, P33 

policy, businesses relocation strategy for providing relocation to 

businesses displaced due to redevelopment; relocation options not 

being viable for businesses and council steps if a developer is not able 

to provide viable relocation and its effect on planning permission for the 

development. 

 Developers providing affordable work spaces at 10% and they can 

divert the 10% to communal spaces; Benchmarking apprenticeships in 

Southwark when compared to other boroughs in Southwark and 

relatively low number of internship (250) targets  

Councillor Seaton explained to the commission that the growth sectors of jobs are 
mostly to the north of borough and efforts are being made to bring it to the south; 
mainly digital, retail and hospitality sectors which will be an evolution over-time 
towards the south of the borough.  
 
The commission learnt from Councillor Seaton that there is some sensitive 
information that he is not at liberty to share; on support for businesses like Plush 
that have been displaced. The planning directorate did not grant the planning 
permission given by the council planning committee on the basis that the business 
and developer were unable to agree a financial compensation or viable relocation. 
Furthermore, the business lease on the property had expired for the past two 
years, the free holder then took direct action. Southwark planning policy does 
ensure that businesses in-situ for 10 or more years are protected for financial 
compensation due to redevelopment or relocation of business. Southwark Council 
has a policy to protect Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) including micro 
businesses as it benefits the local people. Small businesses in such circumstances 
should present themselves at planning committee meetings to voice their concerns 
and issues. It is critical for such businesses to make the Chair and commission 
members of a planning committee aware of their circumstances. 
 
Councillor Seaton informed the commission as the ex-chair of the planning 
committee at Southwark Council and now a cabinet member, suitable offers of 
relocation or financial compensation were made to businesses such as Plush. Cllr 
Seaton has been in contact with the owner of Plush and they are now 
concentrating on having multiple businesses across the borough. 
 
The commission heard from Cllr Seaton that the council actively looks to benefit 
local community with investment from developments as a part of Community 
Wealth Building program. Planning policies in Southwark do not allow developers 
to allocate affordable work spaces to communal spaces, however Cllr Seaton said 
he would be ask the same question to the Lead Member for planning committee. 
 
The commission noted that there is a link between local economy and affordable 
housing, however affordable housing falls under the remit of a different Cabinet 
member. 
 
Danny informed the commission that there has been some data on 
apprenticeships and Southwark fairs well in this regard when compared to other 

8



9 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

boroughs. This also involves direct recruitment of apprentices, through supply 
chain and through projects like employment services. 25% of all apprenticeships in 
32 London Boroughs are created by Southwark. Danny would provide latest 
figures at a future date to the commission.  
 
The commission also requested breakdown of data by beneficiaries through the 
Thriving High Street Funds and Southwark Pioneer’s Fund (SPF). 
 
The commission then asked further questions on the following themes 
 

 Partnership with Lambeth on the Green Skills Centre (figures); Update on 

Community Asset Model and Local Access Partnership (LAP) 

 SE1 prioritising of apprenticeships and internships for local people  

Councillor Seaton explained to the commission that the 1299 green jobs created of 
a target of 2000 green jobs, is in partnership with LSBU, Passmore Centre. 
Southwark Council has a commitment of investing £50m in this area over time. 
Benchmarking of green jobs created can be provided at a later date. Passmore 
centre is focused on creation of green jobs and skills required, and they also offer 
a broad range of courses that would contribute to reducing our carbon footprint as 
a borough.  
 
Danny informed the commission that the council delivery plan targets 250 
internships based on existing resources and the commission could possibly make 
a recommendation on internships target to the Cabinet. The Green Skills Hub is a 
virtual hub of partnership between LSBU, Lambeth Council, Southwark 
Construction Skills Centre and other partners. A breakdown of green jobs 
according to organisations and partners can be provided to the commission at a 
future date. 
 
The commission heard from Councillor Seaton that SE1 and the Health Innovation 
District in partnership with Lambeth Council will be prioritising job opportunities for 
local people. It is important to note that success of this initiative is reliant on 
Broader Skills strategy, internship strategy and the Green Strategy. 
 
Danny explained to the commission that the community asset model in partnership 
with LAP, has made progress since its inception and is delivered through 
partnerships. Delivering £6m investment through partner organisations for social 
and community enterprises is complex. LAP and the council are currently in 
negotiations with delivery partners and results will be announced soon. Southwark 
Land commission have made recommendations to develop a social purpose 
framework to deliver community land assets for social and community enterprises. 
 
The commission then discussed possible recommendations on 
 

 Thorough monitoring of all HR Schools Data- disciplinary, redundancy, 

governor demographic data 

 Working with schools and trade unions to develop a strategy to address any 

inequalities in HR Schools data 

9



10 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 30 January 2024 
 

 Monitoring progress of East Street Market renovation project; Council 

proactively supporting businesses such as Plush. 

The chair explained to the commission that more information is need to establish 
whether the internship target of 250 is ambitious enough. 
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME 2023-2024  
 

 The commission noted that the next meeting on 22 February 2024 would have 
Cabinet Member Interview, Children, Education and Refugees which would include 
closure and amalgamation of nurseries. 
 
The commission noted the changes in meeting dates 
 
22 Feb 2024 7.00 pm (additional) 
14 Mar 2024 7.00 pm (additional) 
1 May 2024 7.00 pm (provisional) 
 

 Meeting ended at 9:25 pm 
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 

  

  
 

10



 
Tower Mill Road 

London, SE15 6BY 
Telephone: 0207 701 6629 

Email: office@grove.southwark.sch.uk 
Website: www.grovenurseryschool.co.uk 

Executive Headteacher: 
Rebecca Sherwood 

 
 
 
 

 
 

29th January 2024 
 

Report for Scrutiny Committee 
 

Redundancies and staffing  
 

 Thirteen staff redundancies took place on 31st December.  

 Two staff members left and were not replaced.  

 One staff member was offered a post in the structure but resigned.   

 One staff member’s redundancy has been delayed as they have taken up a maternity 
cover post at The Grove Nursery School.  

 We have reduced the staff team by sixteen posts. 

 We have initially reduced our pupil numbers and closed two classrooms.   

 We have reduced the 3-5’s places from 60 children per session per room to 39 children 
per session per room. This is a manageable number of children to have in the space.   

 
Our capacity to support children with SEN/D has been greatly reduced.  At the moment we are 
transitioning into the new structure, and have needed to be very cautious regarding January 
admissions. This is because we have identified that starting new children in January whilst 
getting used to a new staffing structure has  risks around safety.  There are a number of families 
who really want to attend Kintore Way who are dissatisfied that a place has not yet been 
offered. 
 
 
SEN/D- intentions and actions to date  
There has been acknowledgement from officers that Southwark need to develop an Early Years 
Strategy for children with SEND. A SEND Early Years and Inclusion Planning Group has been 
created and two meetings have been held.  At the initial meeting there was a discussion about 
the need to plan ahead for children who have been identified by health as having additional 
needs.  
 
Anna Chiva, Assistant Director for SEN/D visited Kintore Way in December and a further meeting 
was held online.  We looked at the children with high levels of need currently at Kintore Way 
and also the waiting list for places.  Anna saw evidence of professionals recommending Kintore 
Way to parents/carers as well as an example of a primary school advising a parent that Kintore 
Way would be a better learning environment for their child.   
 
A proposal for additional funding was made after the identification of a number of  children with 
complex needs who would require an Education Health and Care plan in the future.  This 

 
 
 
 
 
 

97-102 Grange Rd 
London, SE1 3BW 
Tel: 020 7525 1196 
Email: office@kintoreway.southwark.sch.uk 
Website: www.kintoreway.com  

1
Minute Item 6

11

mailto:office@grove.southwark.sch.uk
http://www.grovenurseryschool.co.uk/
mailto:office@kintoreway.southwark.sch.uk
http://www.kintoreway.com/


funding is to enable us to put provision in place for children with complex needs, as part of high 
quality early intervention. We were unable to take further action until we received written 
confirmation of this funding offer. This is due to previous experience where the school lost out 
due to inconsistent communication around funding conditions and amounts.  A written 
agreement was received on 23rd January and a discussion to finalise the agreement took place 
on 29th January. We are now in a position to make arrangements to provide additional support 
for identified children.  
 
We have a waiting list for children with SEN/D and the key question is- ‘If children cannot attend 
Kintore Way then where do the children go to access their entitlement?’ There does not appear 
to be any alternative.  The school are receiving supportive letters from Health Visitors acting on 
behalf of parents who put forward the case that Kintore Way is the best place for a particular 
child to attend. As a result, it is personally and professionally,  very difficult to tell families that 
the school cannot offer their child a place.  
 
The Early Years Inclusion Planning Group is covering a number of issues raised and one of those 
is to look at sufficiency planning and I hope that this will help ensure that there are nursery 
places for children identified by health professionals as requiring additional support.  The group  
is also looking at funding. 
 
Budget Update 
 
We have received a cash advance to help cover redundancy costs and be able to pay staff 
salaries.  
 
We are currently trying to create a deficit recovery plan to show that we can come out of deficit 
and pay back the money we owe over a 5 year period. The DFE have provided Southwark with 
additional funding to support schools in deficit. If we can demonstrate that this is achievable 
then we can access additional funding that has been provided by the LA.  We have to submit a 
deficit recovery plan by 31st Jan, and if successful we will receive a payment of £175,774  on 21st 

February 2024.   
 
I do feel that there has been a real recognition of the work that needs to be done and that there 
is a positive view that better systems can be in place in the future that will benefit nursery aged 
children with additional needs 

212



1 
 

 

Item No. 

5 
Classification: 

Open 

Date: 

22 February 2024 

Meeting Name: 

Education and Local Economy 

Scrutiny Commission   

Report title: Bird in Bush Primary School Amalgamation 

Ward(s) or groups 

affected: 

All 

From: Richard Hunter, Principal Advisor, Education, 

Learning and Achievement 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 

1. The purpose of this item is to outline the rationale, challenges and successes of the 

creation of Bird in Bush Primary School, through the amalgamation of Cobourg and 

Camelot Primary Schools in September 2023, on the Camelot Primary School site. 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2. Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission note this report.  
 

BACKGROUND 

 

Keeping Education Strong 

 

3. In December 2022, Cabinet considered a report ‘Keeping Education Strong: Strategy 

for future proofing primary schools and protecting the quality of education in 

Southwark’. This outlined a strategy to address falling rolls which cabinet approved. 

This anticipated the proposal to amalgamate Cobourg and Camelot Primary Schools 

which became an important part of that strategy.     
 

4. In June 2023 cabinet considered a further update on this strategy, ‘Keeping Education 

Strong Recommendations’. The recommendations in this strategy were approved.  
 

5. In January 2023 London Councils published a report highlighting the continuing concerns 

about school capacity in inner London and the continuing trajectory of falling schools 

rolls1.  

 

Amalgamation rationale 

 

6. On September 1st 2023 Bird in Bush Primary School opened on the Camelot Primary 

School site through the amalgamation of Cobourg Primary School with Camelot 

Primary School. Cobourg Primary School in effect closed on this date. 
 

7. The amalgamation was planned because of the general reasons set out above that 

informed Keeping Education Strong and noted by the London Councils Report.  

                                            
1 London Councils - Managing falling schools rolls (2024).pdf 

13
Agenda Item 5

https://www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Policy%20themes/Children%20and%20young%20people/London%20Councils%20-%20Managing%20falling%20schools%20rolls%20%282024%29.pdf


2 
 

 

8. Furthermore, and specifically relating to Cobourg Primary School, there were a 

number of reasons that particularly identified it for closure. There was graded a 

“Requires Improvement” (RI) school by Ofsted (March 2022), its second consecutive 

RI judgement. This is indicative of an experience for pupils that was not good and 

unable to improve.    

 

9. There was also had a budget deficit due to a steeply declining pupil roll. A school 

with a RI grading will find it harder to attract pupils in a school’s system that prioritises 

parental choice.   

 

10. Cobourg Primary School had experienced a prolonged spell of leadership and 

management turbulence. 

 

11. In June 2022 an Interim Executive Board of Governors (IEB) was installed at 

Cobourg, when its governing body was dissolved by the local authority’s due to 

serious concerns around the quality of education at the school. 

 

12. Camelot Primary School was chosen as an amalgamation option as, at the request 

of the local authority, its highly experienced headteacher had been supporting 

Cobourg Primary School to manage its difficulties at all levels. Furthermore and 

significantly, Camelot Primary School itself was vulnerable to the impact of falling 

rolls. Therefore amalgamation gave both schools the opportunity to continue as one 

financially sustainable school, with strong leadership and governance. 

 

Amalgamation process 

 

13. The amalgamation was able to progress rapidly because the IEB and the Camelot 

Primary School governing body shared personnel and were committed to making 

the plan work for both schools.  
 

14. The Executive Headteacher, James Robinson, was able to work closely with both 

schools’ staff teams and enable a consistent vision to be implemented and shared 

with both communities. 

 

15. The IEB, Camelot Primary School’s governing Body and the Executive Headteacher 

had the full support of the local authority and DfE officers. 

 

16. The planned amalgamation was able to be accommodated by the Council’s internal 

governance processes i.e. Cabinet decision making processes.  

 

17. Financial support from the Council was made available to the families of both 

schools to ease the pressures of costs e.g. of new uniforms and book bags. 

 

18. Local schools were able to accommodate families who opted not to relocate to the 

Camelot site. 

 

14



3 
 

Lessons learned 

 

19. All considerations of schools closures and amalgamations bring with them individual 

situations and characteristics that require a bespoke response and learning 

approach to ensure lessons learned can be taken and applied to future situations as 

far as possible and applicable. The main lessons about this amalgamation are set 

out below.  
 

20. It is important to ensure that there are dedicated local authority resources (financial, 

advisory, project management personnel) allocated to a proposed plan to effectively 

manage. This ensures that advice is timely and accurate, key timelines and 

milestones are understood and effectively planned for, technical questions are 

answered, and a heavy workload is removed from governors. 
 

21. There is a need to ensure alignment with as many conflicting timeframes as possible 

e.g. staff notice periods, Council constitutional and governance timeframes, 

admissions timetables and the academic/ financial/ calendar years’ constraints. 

Therefore, “buy in” remains strong from all stakeholders and financial risks are 

reduced for the Council e.g. possible pay in lieu of notice for some staff. 

 

22. It is important to as early as possible, keep all stakeholders’ communications open, 

timely and transparent.  

 

23. It is important to ensure that families are supported to make the transition from a 

closing school as easy as possible – knowledge of where vacancies exist, distances 

to new schools, assistance with SEND information so that inclusion is effective and 

financial support for families, especially those whose children will transfer to a 

secondary school in the next year. 

 

Successful outcomes 

 

24. The amalgamation plan aligned with the planned Council strategy to manage the 

financial impact on schools caused by Southwark’s falling rolls, “Keeping Education 

Strong”. It removed Cobourg’s one form of entry (30 pupils) and the rolls of local 

schools increased. 

 

25. The two schools and communities amalgamated successfully and effectively, with 

the majority of Cobourg’s pupils transferring to the Camelot site - more than 120 

pupils. All classes in Bird in Bush Primary School are full or almost at that point. 

Each child attracts central government funding of around £6,000.00. 

 

26. Bird in Bush Primary is operating with an in year financial surplus. The former 

schools’ deficits has been removed (over £100,000.00+). 

 

27. Staff with permanent contracts from Cobourg Primary were accommodated at Bird 

in Bush Primary. 

 

15



4 
 

28. Bird in Bush Primary School is a unified, harmonious learning environment thanks 

to the hard work of the staff and families of both schools and good strategic steer 

from the governing body. 

 

29. The focus of the school’s leadership team is now once again focused on the quality 

of education for its learners whatever their needs, rather than the distraction of the 

amalgamation process, or else sufficient pupils to make the school viable and 

ensure a high quality education for all children. The healthy state of the budget 

means that more options are available to leaders. 

 

Celebrating success 
 

30. The amalgamation to form Bird in Bush School is a fairly recent event. We are only 

now at the stage of beginning to evaluate its success following the completion of one 

and a half terms.   

 

31. The establishment of Bird in Bush Primary School is a huge success for the 

communities by stakeholders involved in achieving it.  
 

32. Bird in Bush is appropriately referred to by local authority officers as a successful 

example of how to achieve an effective closure and reopening of a school. It is 

however important to recognise its particular characteristics and the learning from 

the process.   

 

33. There has been acknowledgement by the local authority of the immense work of the 

headteacher, his staff and the governing body of Camelot and now Bird in Bush 

Primary School. All indicators suggest that pupil numbers will remain high, the longer 

lasting positive impacts of amalgamation can be celebrated. Reception first choice 

application preferences are close to 30, which at this point in the year is promising 

as the school could be at capacity in September 2024. 

 

34. There was a feeling that the highly emotive feelings around Cobourg’s closure 

should be sensitively managed, given the difficulties the school had experienced. 

Thus the start of Bird in Bush Primary school was without fanfare and the process 

of quietly establishing the new school to enable it to create the conditions to thrive 

was allowed to take place. Now that the positive impacts are being seen as 

sustainable thought is being given to celebrate “one year on”. This piece of work 

needs to be undertaken in partnership with the school’s stakeholders. 

 

 

16



1 

 

 

Item 

No. 6 
Classification: 

Open 

Date: 

22 February 2024 

Meeting Name: 

Education and Local Economy 

Scrutiny Commission   

Report title: School Funding  

Ward(s) or groups 

affected: 

All 

From: Kate Bingham, Schools Finance Consultant 

Children’s and Adults’ Services 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Education and Local Economy Scrutiny 

Commission about how school funding works, particularly nursery school funding.  

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission note this report.  

BACKGROUND 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 

3. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) from the Department for Education (DfE) is 

the principal source of funding for the education of children and young people of 

statutory school age (age 5 to 16) and is ring-fenced to expenditure for the 

purposes of education to ensure that local authorities (LAs) allocate the full 

amount of funding to their schools.  

4. The grant received is split between four funding blocks (the allocation of which is 

governed by The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2023)) 

(the Regulations):  

5. Schools Block - funds the Individual School Budgets (ISB) and LA central 

services for maintained schools, is calculated via the National Funding Formula 

(NFF) and is allocated through a locally derived formula.1 

6. High Needs Block - ring-fenced to cover the education of pupils with high needs, 

as determined by their Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP), is calculated 

via a basic entitlement, historic allocations and local demographics and is 

allocated through a combination of basic funding per place and top up fees 

determined by the needs of the child or young person. 

                                            
1 The DfE intends to move to a direct NFF from 2027-28 (at the latest) which will be used to determine allocations 

for individual schools, resulting in a much-reduced role for LAs in sharing out core funding for mainstream schools 

17
Agenda Item 6

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2023/59/part/3/chapter/2/made


2 

 

7. Early Years Block - funding is provided on a per pupil basis (different values 

depending on the age, from 9 months up to age 4, and the family’s personal 

circumstances) and is allocated through a locally derived formula. 

8. Central Schools Services Block – funds education services carried out by the 

LA on behalf of all schools (maintained and academies) and to cover historic 

commitments, based on historic factors. 

9. The DSG is paid to LAs minus deductions (‘recoupment’) for academies.  A 

detailed explanation of how each block of the DSG is calculated is included at 

Appendix 1. 

10. There is some flexibility for LAs to transfer funding between the four blocks 

although there is a limit on the movement of funds of 0.5% of the Schools Block 

allocation and only with the agreement of the Schools Forum after having 

consulting with all schools.  

11. Schools Forum is a statutory body which advises the council on issues related 

to schools’ budgets as well as having some have decision making powers. It is 

comprised of various representatives from local schools (see further para 48 

below). 

12. Overspends on the DSG are carried forward and between 2017-18 and 2021-22, 

Southwark’s DSG deficit rose to £21.7m due to financial pressures within the High 

Needs Block as a consequence of increases in the level of high needs education 

support which far exceeded the equivalent increases in high needs funding. 

  

18



3 

 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

Dedicated Schools Grant - Distribution 

15. LAs do not pass DSG funding straight on to schools.  In allocating funding, they 

must consult with their local Schools Forum and with all maintained schools, 

including nursery schools, and academies in their area.   

16. The LA, in consultation with the Schools Forum, determines the overall ISB for 

schools in the area, any funding to be centrally retained, and whether any funding 

should be moved between DSG blocks.   

17. The LA also determines a local funding formula which is used to distribute the 

ISB between local schools.  This option allows LAs, following Schools Forum 

authorisation, to apply local rates / amounts to each of the factors that determine 

the allocation (such as Minimum Funding Guarantee and income deprivation 

affecting children) prior to the distribution of funding to schools. 

18. Southwark’s School Forum finalised those decisions on 18th January 20242. 

19. A detailed explanation of how each block of the DSG is distributed to Southwark 

schools and education services is included at Appendix 2. 

Additional funding for schools  

20. In addition to the DSG, schools receive additional funding to support specific 

educational and wellbeing outcomes, ‘non-statutory’ education (16-19 year olds), 

unavoidable increases in expenditure (e.g. teachers’ pay) and capital 

maintenance programmes. 

21. The following additional funding is explained in more detail in Appendix 3: 

 Pupil Premium Grant 

 Primary PE & Sports Grant   

 Free School Meals 

 Recovery Premium 

 16-19 Funding  

 Teachers Pay Additional Grant 

 Capital Funding 

 

                                            
2 January 2024 School Forum papers are available @ Southwark Schools Forum 

19

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/schools-and-education/school-management/southwark-schools-forum?chapter=2


4 

 

Safety valve agreement 

13. In March 2023, the Council entered into a formal Safety Valve Agreement (SVA) 

with the DfE, receiving a commitment of £23m revenue and £3m capital funding 

in return for:  

 Improving Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities (SEND) services 

in line with Southwark’s SEND Strategy 2022-2025; and 

 Reaching an in-year balance on the DSG by 2024-25 and eliminating that 

deficit by 2026-27 as set out in the DSG Management Plan3. 

Dedicated School Grant – 2024-25 Allocation 

14. The total 2024-25 DSG allocation for Southwark is £398 million and is detailed in 

Table 1 below, alongside a comparison to the 2023-24 DSG allocation. 

Table 1:  2024-25 DSG Allocation 

 DSG 

Allocation 

Schools 

Block 

High Needs 

Block 

Early  Years 

Block 

Central 

Services 

Schools 

Block 

Total DSG 

Allocation 

(£’m) (£’m) (£’m) (£’m) (£’m) 

2024-25 285.88 74.93 34.92 1.91 397.64 

2023-24* 285.75 71.77 24.01 1.88 383.41 

Increase  
0.13 3.16 10.91 0.03 14.23 

0.0% 4.4% 45.4% 1.5% 3.7% 

* 2023-24 Schools Block includes Mainstream Schools Additional Grant (£9,032,963) and High Needs Block 

includes High Needs Additional Grant (£2,945,335) – both rolled into 2024-25 DSG Allocations for the respective 

blocks 

 

Early Years: Securing and Funding Sufficient Places 

LA Responsibilities 

15. The Childcare Act 2016, Section 1 places a duty on the Secretary of State (SoS) 

to secure the equivalent of 30 hours (or 15 hours part time) of free childcare over 

38 weeks of the year for qualifying children.  Section 2 of the same Act then allows 

the SoS to discharge their duty by placing a duty on English LAs to secure free 

childcare for qualifying children4.  

16. It is the primary duty of the SoS to secure free childcare and the full cost of 

discharging that duty is financed nationally by way of the Early Years Block of the 

DSG allocated to each LA.  LAs then fulfil their duty by securing and funding5 

sufficient places, allocating the Early Years Block via a locally-determined, 

                                            
3 Presented at the Schools Forum 22 September 2022 (Southwark Schools Forum) 
4 The Childcare (Early Years Provision Free of Charge) (Extended Entitlement) Regulations 2016, regulation 33 
5 The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2023 

20

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/5/enacted
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/schools-and-education/school-management/southwark-schools-forum?chapter=3
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/1257/regulation/33/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2023/59/contents/made


5 

 

transparent formula which set the funding rates for all types of provider before 

the beginning of each financial year.  

17. LAs are required to review and redetermine provider budgets during the year 

following termly updates on hours of attendance to reflect actual levels of 

participation within the financial year, across all sectors. 

18. The main requirements imposed on LAs by the Regulations are set out below: 

 pass through a minimum of 95% of funding to providers 

 include a mandatory deprivation supplement in their local formula and only 

provide further discretionary supplements within the permitted categories 

and up to a total of 10% of the value of planned funding to providers; 

 pay providers the Disability Access Fund in respect of eligible children; 

 establish a special educational needs inclusion fund 

 pay providers the Early Years Pupil Premium in respect of their 

disadvantaged three- and four-year-old children. 

19. LAs must also submit details of the funding rates they pay providers for all early 

years’ places to the DfE which is then published to enable providers and parents 

to compare rates across the country. 

20. In addition, LAs are required to secure sufficient childcare, so far as is reasonably 

practicable, for working parents, or parents who are studying or training for 

employment, for children aged 0-14 or up to 18 for disabled children. These 

requirements are set out in more detail in the report to this commission of Neil 

Gordon Orr, Assistant Director, Education Access.  

Changes to Nursery Place Funding 

22. By September 2025, working parents6 will be able to claim 30 hours of free 

childcare a week, over 38 weeks of the year, from nine months up to their child 

starting school.   Southwark has received approx. £10m additional Early Years 

Block to fund the increased offer, as can be seen in Table 1 above. 

23. Currently, all 3 and 4 year olds are entitled to 15 hours per week of free childcare 

or early education, rising to 30 hours for working families, and 15 hours for 

disadvantaged 2 year olds, over 38 weeks of the year.  

24. The increased offer will be rolled out in stages to allow childcare providers time 

to be able to implement the changes, making sure the places that are needed are 

available across the country when the offers are introduced: 

                                            
6 Working parents who individually (or each if in a couple) earn more than £8,670 (from April 2023) but less than 
£100,000 per year (if in a couple: neither one can earn more than £100,000) are eligible.  

21

https://www.gov.uk/30-hours-free-childcare


6 

 

 From April 2024, working parents of 2 year olds will be able to access 15 

hours of free childcare.  

 From September 2024, 15 hours of free childcare will be extended down 

to the age of 9 months for working parents. 

 From September 2025, working parents of children aged 9 months and 

upwards will be entitled to 30 hours free childcare per week right up to 

their child starting school. 

25. In addition, LAs and schools will be given more funding for “wraparound care”, so 

that parents of school-age children can access childcare in their local area from 

8am – 6pm, Monday to Friday during term time. 

26. This will be rolled out in September 2024, and by September 2026, all parents 

should be able to access wraparound care, either from their school or other 

provider.   

27. Start-up funding will be available over two academic years to support LAs and 

providers to introduce or expand childcare provision on either side of the school 

day, which parents of primary school-aged children will be able to pay to access. 

28. Southwark’s maximum grant allocation7, upon approval of a delivery plan is 

outlined in Table 2 below.  

Table 2:  Wraparound care maximum grant allocation 

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
(Provisional) 

Total 

£13,037.22 £749,959.02 £352,857.76 £1,115,854.00 

 

29. Full guidance is available @ National wraparound childcare programme 

handbook: a guide for local authorities. 

30. To support LAs in delivering the expansion of the 30-hours early years entitlement 

for working families and of wraparound provision in primary schools, the 

Childcare Expansion Capital Grant has been created, based on: 

 Likely take up of the expanded 30 hours offer in the LA, based on Part Time 

Equivalent (PTE8) data for the existing 30 hours offer for 3 and 4 year olds 

(where).  

 The number of maintained mainstream primary schools in the LA that do 

not offer any existing wraparound provision or only offer before or after 

school provision (but not both).  

                                            
7 Wraparound childcare programme: S31 grant determination letter 
8 a child taking up 15 hours of provision is 1PTE and child taking up the full 30 hours is 2PTE 

22

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/653a3aa280884d0013f71b8e/National_wraparound_childcare_programme_handbook_a_guide_for_local_authorities.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/653a3aa280884d0013f71b8e/National_wraparound_childcare_programme_handbook_a_guide_for_local_authorities.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65393ac5d10f35000d9a6972/Wraparound_childcare_programme_S31_grant_determination_letter.pdf


7 

 

31. The grant funding is subject to certain conditions, as set out in the published 

Grant Determination document, though un-ringfenced. It is ultimately for LAs to 

determine how to best use the funding to meet local priorities. 

32. Southwark’s allocation is £427,729 

Financial Position 

33. As at the end of 2022-23, the number of schools with a cumulative year-end 

deficit is illustrated in Table 3 below. 

Table 3: Number of schools with a 2022-23 year-end deficit 

School Type 
Cumulative 

Deficit 

Primary 10 

Nursery 3 

Secondary 0 

Special, Hospital & PRU 0 

 

34. All maintained schools in deficit are monitored with regular meetings between 

Schools’ Finance and the Education Directorate. For those schools in deficit, a 

budget recovery plan is required to return the school to a balanced or surplus 

position within three to five years.   

Other Financial Support Available  

Additional funding to support individual schools in financial difficulties 

35. In July 2023 the DfE announced that it is providing up to £40 million of additional 

funding in 2023-24 to support individual schools in financial difficulties with £20m 

allocated to LAs with the most significant maintained school deficits. The 

remaining £20m is used to top up the existing financial support that is available 

to academies. 

36. Southwark’s allocation of the funding is £516k and is one of the 35 LAs across 

the country to receive a share of the £20m.  This is a one-off payment in 2023-24 

and the DfE has no plans to provide similar funding in 2024-25. 

37. The funding has been allocated to the maintained schools with the greatest 

forecast 2023-24 deficit balances with the amount awarded to individual schools 

calculated as a proportion of 2023-24 additional funding allocated.  

38. As part of the funding, the Council has set specific conditions and payment will 

be made before the end of the 2023-24 financial year.  

39. The final funding, should the conditions be met, will be distributed to three 

Nursery Schools and two Primary schools. Amounts per school range between 

£175k and £39k. 

23



8 

 

Schools’ Financial Support Panel 

40. The Schools’ Financial Support Panel (SFSP) manages three funding streams: 

the Growth Fund; the Falling Rolls Fund; and Schools in Financial Difficulty Fund. 

41. The Schools Forum has delegated responsibility to the SFSP which comprises 

three head teachers, supported by LA officers. 

42. The SFSP determines whether to offer financial support to schools, and the 

amount of any such support, in relation to:   

 contribution of costs for bulge classes (Growth Fund); 

 support where the places are forecast to be needed over the short-medium 

term (Falling Rolls Fund); 

 severance payments to school employees on the grounds of compulsory 

and voluntary redundancy, including the ending of a fixed term contract by 

reason of redundancy (Schools in Financial Difficulty Fund); 

 premature retirement, including ill health retirement (Schools in Financial 

Difficulty Fund);  

 settlement agreements made to secure resignations (Schools in Financial 

Difficulty Fund); 

 help addressing a deficit balance which has been licenced by the authority 

(Schools in Financial Difficulty Fund).   

Financial Responsibilities 

Governing Body 

43. The governing body, supported by information and advice provided by the head 

teacher, decides the strategic direction of the school.  Governors have collective 

responsibility for financial decisions taken to implement the strategy and are 

answerable to parents and the wider community. 

44. The key financial aspects of the governors role are 

 agreeing the school’s financial regulations and scheme of delegation  

 agreeing the school’s budget 

 holding the school to account: 

i. through budget monitoring 

ii. using the results of the school’s audit and ensuring audit 

recommendations are implemented 

24



9 

 

iii. through the annual Schools Financial Value Standard 

Head teacher 

45. The responsibility for the implementation of financial decisions and day to day 

management of the budget remains with the head teacher. 

Local Authority 

46. The Section 151 officer has a responsibility to ensure that schools have sound 

financial management.  If a school is proposing to set a deficit budget (where 

anticipated in-year expenditure will exceed anticipated income) or is projecting to 

carry forward a deficit balance, the Section 151 officer requires the school to set 

out an action plan (using a pro-forma template) that demonstrates how this deficit 

position will be managed. 

47. The key aspects of the LA’s role in schools’ finance are: 

 supporting the operation of the Schools Forum 

 maintaining the schools’ funding formula 

 determining school funding levels 

 maintaining an overview of school budget plans and progress against 

these 

 maintaining the Scheme for Financing Schools 

 financial governance role – i.e. maintained schools’ internal audits  

Schools Forum 

48. The Schools Forum is a statutory body which advises the council on issues 

related to schools’ budgets as well as having some have decision making powers. 

The respective roles of Schools Forum, LAs and the DfE are summarised in 

Schools Forum powers and responsibilities.  The overarching areas on which 

Schools Forums make decisions on LA proposals include: 

 de-delegation from mainstream maintained schools budgets (separate 

approval will be required by the primary and secondary phase members of 

schools forum), for prescribed services to be provided centrally  

 to create a fund for significant pupil growth and falling rolls  

 agreeing other centrally retained budgets, including for LA statutory 

responsibilities (where these relate to maintained schools only, voting is by 

the primary, secondary, special and PRU members of schools forum)  

25

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/schools-forums-operational-and-good-practice-guide-2015


10 

 

 funding for central early years expenditure, which may include funding for 

checking eligibility of pupils for an early years place, the early years pupil 

premium and/or free school meals  

 In each of these cases, the LA can appeal to the SoS if the Schools Forum 

rejects its proposal. 

 

26



Local Authority Funding Calculation  Appendix 1 

11 

 

SCHOOLS BLOCK 

1. The schools NFF determines how the core funding for 5–16 year-old pupils in 

mainstream schools is distributed to LAs. 

 

2. Approximately 93.5% of the schools NFF funding is allocated through ‘pupil-led’ 

factors. The ‘pupil-led’ factors are determined by pupil numbers and pupils’ 

characteristics. The majority of this funding is allocated through the basic 

entitlement factor, which all pupils attract. The NFF allocates the rest of ‘pupil-led’ 

funding through additional needs factors based on deprivation, low prior 

attainment, English as an additional language and mobility. 

 

3. ‘School-led’ funding is allocated through various factors according to a school’s 

characteristics. All schools attract a lump sum with small and remote schools 

receiving additional funding for sparsity. Other school-led funding reflects costs 

associated with a school’s premises and overheads through four separate factors: 

rates, split sites, private finance initiative (PFI) and exceptional circumstances. 

 

4. An area cost adjustment (ACA) is applied as a multiplier to formula allocations to 

reflect higher costs in some parts of the countries, due to differences in salary 

costs.  

 

5. Finally, the formula offers two different forms of protections for schools: 

 The minimum per pupil level guarantees a minimum amount of funding for 

every pupil; and 

 The funding floor protects schools from year-on-year funding decreases, by 

ensuring a minimum increase in pupil-led funding per pupil compared to the 

previous year.  

6. The primary and secondary units of funding values (uplifted each year, as 

determine by the DfE) are multiplied by the relevant pupil count (previous October) 

for each sector accordingly added to the historic spend cash value applied for 

premises, mobility and growth to determine the final Schools Block allocation. 

7. The Schools Block is ring-fenced and LAs must pass 99.5 per cent directly onto 

schools and the remaining 0.5 per cent can be transferred to the High Needs Block 

with the agreement of Schools Forum. 

8. Table 1A below provides a summary of the 2024-25 Schools Block for Southwark. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



Local Authority Funding Calculation  Appendix 1 

12 

 

Table 1A:  Schools Block Allocation 2024-25 

NFF Model Factor Information 
Funding  

(£’m) 

Primary unit of funding £6558.04 / 20,123.5 pupils 131.97 

Secondary unit of funding £9,120.53 / 16,258.5 pupils 148.29 

Premises and Mobility   4.08 

Growth Funding   1.54 

Total Schools Block (before recoupment) 285.88 

 

HIGH NEEDS BLOCK  

 

9. The high needs NFF supports provision for children and young people with SEND 

from ages 0-25 years. It also supports alternative provision (AP) for pupils of 

compulsory school age who, because they have been excluded or suspended, or 

because of illness or other reasons, cannot receive their education in mainstream 

or special 

 

10. The formula consists of factors designed to indicate the level of need within a LA 

and also includes funding floor and gains limit factors, to ensure a minimum level 

of increase for every LA and to reduce the impact of year-on-year changes to their 

funding levels.  A brief description of each funding factor is outlined in Table 1B 

below. 

 

Table 1B:  High Needs Block Funding 

Funding 

factor 

Description and factor information 

Basic 

entitlement 

factor 

Allocates funding on the basis of data on the pupil and student numbers in 

special schools and special post-16 institutions. The funding rate is £4,660 

per pupil or student and is subject to an area cost adjustment. 

Historic 

spend factor 

Provides 50% of the LA’s 2017-18 spending on high needs to reflect past 

spending patterns, given the constraints that the local demand for and 

supply of provision will continue to place on future spending 

Proxy factors The remaining high needs funding, after deducting the basic entitlement 

factor funding, hospital education factor and historic spend factors, is then 

available for the proxy factors, listed below:  

 Population factor  

 Free school meals (FSM) factor  

 Income deprivation affecting children index (IDACI) factor  

 Bad health factor  

 Disability factor  

 Key stage 2 low attainment factor  

 Key stage 4 low attainment factor  

Weightings for each of these factors differ depending on whether the 

formula is providing a LA with funding for SEND, AP or both and all are 

subject to an area cost adjustment. 

28



Local Authority Funding Calculation  Appendix 1 

13 

 

Funding 

factor 

Description and factor information 

Funding floor 

factor 

This ensures local authorities do not fall below a minimum level of funding. 

The factor is applied to the funding calculated through historic spend 

factor and proxy factors. There are two elements:  

 on a per head basis, these elements of the formula will increase by at 

least 3% in 2024-25 over the 2023-24 funding baseline 

 for LAs with decreasing populations, no LA will receive less funding than 

the equivalent figure from the 2023-24 baseline  

Gains limit 

factor 

Limit placed on allocations such that no LA may receive greater than a 5% 

increase per head on their 2023-24 baseline amount.  

Alternative 

Provision 

factor 

Hospital education and historic teachers’ pay, pensions and pensions 

supplementary grant funding 

Import 

/export 

adjustment  

Allocations are subject to adjustments to account for high needs pupils 

and students that attend provision in a different LA from that in which they 

are resident.  

  

11. Table 1C below provides a summary of the 2024-25 High Needs Block for 

Southwark. 

 

Table 1C:  High Needs Block Allocation 2024-25 

NFF Model Factor Information 
Funding 

(£'m) 

Basic Entitlement 915 special school places 5.17 

Historic spend 2017-18 baseline 24.34 

Proxy factors   43.20 

AP factor   3.73 

Funding Floor   0 

Gains limit   0 

Import/export adjustment   -1.51 

Total High Needs Block (before recoupment)9 74.93 

 

12. The import/export adjustment of £1.51m is a provisional allocation based on the 

previous year’s import/export.  In the summer term (June) 2024, the Education and 

Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) will update the import and export adjustments to 

reflect the latest data from the January 2024 school census which may alter the 

total High Needs Block allocation. 

 

 

  

                                            
9 Final allocation notified 19/12/23  

29



Local Authority Funding Calculation  Appendix 1 

14 

 

EARLY YEARS BLOCK 

 

13. There are eight elements to the formula on which LA Early Years Block allocations 

are calculated: 

 funding for the 15 hours entitlement for 9-month-old up to 2-year-old children 

of eligible working parents 

 funding for the 15 hours entitlement for disadvantaged 2-year-olds 

 funding for the 15 hours entitlement for 2-year-old children of eligible working 

parents 

 funding for the universal 15 hours entitlement for all 3 and 4-year-olds 

 funding for the additional 15 hours for 3 and 4-year-old children of eligible 

working parents 

 supplementary funding for maintained nursery schools (MNS) for 3 and 4-

year-olds 

 funding for the early years pupil premium (EYPP) for 3 and 4-year-olds, 2-

year-olds and under 2s 

 funding for the disability access fund (DAF) for 3 and 4-year-olds, 2-year-olds 

and under 2s 

14. The indicative allocations10 for the new under 2’s, 2-year-olds and 3-and-4 year-

olds funding streams as well as MNS and EYPP are calculated as follows: 

 the number of PTEs taking up the entitlements as recorded on the January 

2023 schools, early years and AP censuses 

 multiplied by 15 hours × 38 weeks × LA’s hourly funding rate. 

15. Table 1D below provides a summary of the 2024-25 Early Years Block for 

Southwark. 

 

  

                                            
10 The Education and Skills Funding Agency will update these indicative allocations in July 2024 based on 

January 2024 PTE census numbers 

30



Local Authority Funding Calculation  Appendix 1 

15 

 

Table 1D:  Early Years Block Allocation 2024-25 

NFF Model Factor Information 
Funding  

(£’m) 

15 hours entitlement - 9-month-old up to 2-

year-old children of eligible working 

parents11 

370.23 PTEs / £14.98 per hour   3.16  

15 hours entitlement - 2-year-old children 

of eligible working parents12 
730.72 PTEs / £10.97 per hour   4.57  

15 hours entitlement - Disadvantaged 2 

year olds 
590.8 PTEs / £10.97 per hour   3.69  

Universal entitlement for 3 & 4 year olds 3,727.13 PTEs / £7.60 per hour   16.15  

Additional entitlement for 3 & 4 year old 

children of eligible working parents 
1,196.51 PTEs / £7.60 per hour   5.18  

Supplementary funding - MNS 348 PTEs / £7.52/hour   1.49  

EYPP 1,339.84 PTEs / £0.68 per hour    0.52  

DAF 174 PTEs / £910 per year   0.16  

Total (Indicative) Early Years Block 34.92  

 

16. The indicative allocations are based on an assumed 100% take up of the free 

entitlement across the age ranges.  Consequently, the majority of (if not, all) LAs 

can expect a reduction in the Early Years Block when the final allocations are 

notified in July 2024. 

 

CENTRAL SCHOOL SERVICES BLOCK 

 

17. The Central School Services Block (CSSB) provides funding for LA central 

functions for maintained schools and academies, created from the Schools Block 

funding that was held centrally by LAs, and the retained duties element of the 

Education Services Grant (ESG), which no longer exists.  

 

18. The CSSB is split into funding for historic commitments13 and funding for ongoing 

responsibilities for all schools.  Funding to LAs for ongoing responsibilities is 

allocated according to the CSSB formula distributing 90 per cent based on a per-

pupil factor and 10 per cent on a deprivation factor with both elements adjusted 

for area costs.  

 

19. From 2024-25, a copyright licences funding factor has been introduced within the 

ongoing responsibilities element.  Funding for ongoing responsibilities includes a 

protection to ensure no LA sees losses of greater than 2.5% per pupil and a gains 

gap at 5.51%, compared to 2023-24.  

                                            
11 The total annual hours used in the calculation of PTEs is based on 26 weeks, to reflect the September 2024 

start for this entitlement 
12 April 2024 start for this entitlement 
13 Southwark does not receive any funding for historical commitments 

31



Local Authority Funding Calculation  Appendix 1 

16 

 

 

20. Table 1E below provides a summary of the 2024-25 Central School Services 

Block for Southwark. 

 

Table 1E:  Central School Services Block Allocation 2024-25 

NFF Model Factor Information 
Funding 

(£’m) 

Ongoing commitments 36,382 pupils 1.91 

Total Central School Services Block 1.91 

 

32



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

17 

 

SCHOOLS BLOCK  
 

1.  The School Block funds Southwark’s mainstream primary and secondary schools 

via the School Budget Share (SBS) which is allocated through a locally derived 

formula. 

 

2. A number of items can be deducted (top sliced) from the total Schools Block, prior 
to the determination of the SBS, as prescribed by the Regulations: 

 Schools Block Transfer: a maximum of  0.5 % of the Schools Block can be 
transferred to the High Needs Block with the agreement of Schools Forum: 

 Growth Fund:  used to contribute to the cost of bulge classes where these have 
been set up and managed by the Schools’ Financial Support Panel (SFSP); 

 Falling Rolls Fund: also managed by the SFSP, with allocation criteria set by 

national regulations with limited scope to adjust them locally. 

 

3. Individual mainstream schools’ SBS is determined by the local funding formula.  
For 2024-25, the funding attracted by individual pupils is set out at Table 2A. 

Table 2A:  Schools Block Allocation 

 
 
4. As part of the move towards the implementation of the NFF as a means to allocate 

schools’ budget shares, the ESFA have introduced funding bands for each formula 

Primary Secondary Primary Secondary

Age Weighted Pupil Unit Key Stage 1 and 2 (Years R to 6) 4,626.36      20,163.83    93,285        

Age Weighted Pupil Unit Key Stage 3 (Years 7 to 9) 6,628.09      9,736.00      64,531        

Age Weighted Pupil Unit Key Stage 4 (Years 10 to 11) 6,649.45      6,580.00      43,753        

Deprivation Free School Meals 515.18        515.18        7,438.95      6,083.66      6,967          

Deprivation Free School Meals (Ever6) 948.73        1,388.39      7,702.46      7,142.77      17,225        

Deprivation IDACI Band F 246.79        382.48        1,621.69      1,493.19      971             

Deprivation IDACI Band E 299.64        506.23        5,349.67      4,278.05      3,769          

Deprivation IDACI Band D 467.86        724.20        3,644.94      2,980.72      3,864          

Deprivation IDACI Band C 561.14        798.33        3,310.55      2,659.10      3,981          

Deprivation IDACI Band B 597.07        856.18        1,384.31      1,068.25      1,741          

Deprivation IDACI Band A 713.83        1,093.36      422.80        344.15        678             

English as an Additional Language EAL3 Primary 620.31        1,666.00      4,055.43      682.43        3,653          

Prior Attainment 1,230.12      1,879.38      5,781.29      2,876.57      12,518        

Mobility Pupils starting outside normal entry dates 1,110.71      1,596.65      225.21        86.83          389             

Sub total:  pupil led funding 257,322       

Premises Lump sum 16,022        

Premises Split Site - Lump Sum Lump sum 62,130.55    Distance 31,123.13    504             

Premises Rates 3,566          

Sub total:  school led funding 20,092        

Additional Lump Sum for Amalgamating Schools 252             

Minimum Funding Guarantee @ 0.5% 6,355          

Transfer to High Needs Block @ 0.42% 1,200          

Growth Fund 50               

Falling Rolls Fund 300             

Other Adjustments to 2023-24 Budgets Shares 309             

Deductions for ESFA payments to National Non Domestic Rates 3,566-          

TOTAL SCHOOLS BLOCK ALLOCATION 282,316       

Factor type Factor

180,023.52                                                                

NFF Value Units 
Local 

Formula 

Allocation

£'000

33



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

18 

 

factor, within which each LA’s funding rates must fall. These bands will narrow 
each year, bringing LA funding rates ever closer to the NFF. 

5. Funding for LA education services can then be deducted from the SBS to support 
central functions (central retentions) for maintained schools, as set out in Table 
2B.  School Forum members for maintained schools must approve these elements 
be removed from the formula before schools budgets are issued. 
 

Table 2B:  Schools Block Central Retentions 

Funding 

factor 

Description  Allocated 

Funding 

De-delegated 

services 

 

The services de-delegated are: 

- Additional school improvement services 

- Contingencies (including schools in financial 

difficulties and deficits of closing schools) 

- Behavior support services 

- Free school meals eligibility 

- Staff costs supply cover (maternity and trade 

union facility time) 

£3,210,000 

Education 

services for 

all 

maintained 

schools  

The services funded are  

- Education management team,  

- Family Early Help 

- Property Management 

- Corporate Overheads 

£246,000 

 
HIGH NEEDS BLOCK  
 

6. The high needs funding system has two main components of distribution: core 
funding & top-up funding. 

7. Core funding is paid by the LA (for maintained schools & Alternative Provision) or 

by the ESFA (for academies and free schools).  It is allocated to institutions in a 

number of ways: 

 Mainstream school and academy budgets, derived from the DSG schools block 

and the pre-16 local funding formulae.  For pupils in mainstream schools, 

schools funds the first £6,000 for mainstream provision. 

 Post-16 providers, including mainstream schools, academies, Further 

Education institutions, Independent Learning Provision (ILPs) and Special Post 

16 Institutions (SPIs), through the 16-19 NFF (sometimes called element 1) 

alongside place funding of £6,000 (sometimes called element 2 in post-16 

settings); and 

 £10,000 per place, depending on the institution and place type which is drawn 

from the High Needs Block. 

8. Top-up funding is allocated by the LA to institutions and is sometimes referred to 

as element 3.  The funding is paid from the High Needs Block of the LA in which 

34



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

19 

 

the pupil or student is resident or to which they belong.  If the cost of providing for 

the pupil is more that allocated through core or place funding the LA will allocate 

the institution additional top up funding.  

 

9. Top-up funding is based on individual pupils: 

 

 Pupils with an EHCP in Mainstream Schools 

o 4 EHCP funding bands 

  

 Pupils in a SEN Unit/Resource Base 

o based on need catered for by the SEN unit 

 

 Pupils in Special School 

o single funding rate based on pupil need served 

 

 Adjusted in-year for joiners/leavers/changes 

 

10. Table 2C sets out core funding and top-up funding by maintained schools. 

 

Table 2C:  SEND Funding 

Costs 
Mainstream 

Pupils 
SEN Unit Pupils* 

Special School 

Pupils 

£0 - £4k  

Basic Need  

Met From SBS 

Formula 

Met From SBS 

Formula 

Met From Place 

Funding 

£4k - £6k  

Low Need SEN 

Met From SBS 

Formula 
Met From Place 

Funding £6k - £10k  

High Need SEN 

 

Met From Top Up 

Over £10k 

High Need SEN 
Met From Top Up Met From Top Up Met From Top Up 

* SEN Units/Resource Bases receive £10k for empty places  

 

11. In 2023-24, all LAs received a High Needs Additional Grant (paid as a separate 

allocation to the 2023-24 DSG).  Whilst the grant has been rolled into the 2024-25 

High Needs allocation, maintained special schools and PRUs, special 

and AP academies (including free schools) and maintained and academy hospital 

schools will continue to receive a separate allocation equivalent to the additional 

funding allocations in 2023-24. 

 

12. The DSG conditions of grant for 2024-25 require LAs to pass on the same level of 

additional funding, at the same amount per place, to these schools (as detailed 

below).  

 

35



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

20 

 

13. Southwark’s 2023-24 additional grant allocation was £2.945m which supported an 

3.4% increase in the top up rates for: 

 

 Special Schools, Hospital Schools and Alternative Provision; 

 

 Resource Bases and holders of EHCP’s in all mainstream settings; 

 

 ‘Inclusion Fund’ (supporting the most inclusive schools who have the highest 

levels of pupils with EHCP’s). 

 

14. While the majority of a LA’s high needs budget is spent on place and top-up funding 

for schools and colleges, LAs can also use high needs funding to provide additional 

or targeted support for children and young people with SEND, as permitted under 

schedule 2 of  the Regulations.  This can take the form of additional funding to 

schools and colleges, which may be paid on the basis of a service level agreement, 

or access to specialist services or expertise commissioned by the LA. 

 

15. In 2024-25, the centrally retained element of the High Needs Block is detailed in 

Table 2D.  The Schools Forum is expected to discuss the details, including funding 

and effectiveness of these services. 

 

Table 2D:  High Needs Block Central Retentions 

Service Description 
Allocated 

Funding 

Autism Support 

Team 

The team support mainstream schools with children 

with ASD and, whilst not a statutory requirement, has 

been supported by the forum for over 10 years.   

OfSTED has also commented on the need for the 

service. 

        

£367,614  

SEN Inclusion 

Team 

This budget supports strategic management of the 

service and a small team of teachers to provide this 

statutory service.  A small amount of non-statutory work 

relates to supporting schools with pupils on SEND 

support. 

      £582,423  

Hearing And 

Visual 

Impairment 

Team 

This budget is used for staffing of the Hearing And 

Visual Impairment Team. This is a Statutory Service. 

     £717,496  

Speech and 

Language 

Therapy (SALT) 

The funding is to meet any statutory SALT provision 

written into part F of children’s EHCPs in Southwark 

special schools The service is mostly Statutory SALT 

provision for the Southwark maintained special school 

population. 

     £320,000  

SENDIF To supplement the increased contribution from the 

Early Years Block for support for eligible children 

with SEN taking up any of the early years free 

entitlements, as detailed in paragraph 23 below 

      £100,000  

36



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

21 

 

Service Description 
Allocated 

Funding 

Corporate 

Overhead 

The above pays for share of the corporate support for 

running the services met out of the DSG 

      £163,586  

Total High Needs Block Central Retention £2,252,119 

 

EARLY YEARS BLOCK  

 

16. As a result of the expansion of the age ranges covered by the free early years 

entitlements, Southwark carried out a consultation with providers on proposed 

amendments to its Early Years Funding Arrangements (with a total of 60 

responses).  The outcomes of the consultation informed the funding rates, in the 

following way: 

 establishing two separate funding formulas for 2 year olds, one for the 

disadvantaged households provision and one for the working households 

provision. The separate formulas have been established in case of future 

need for flexibility 

 extending the Deprivation supplement to the additional age ranges,  

 using the same Deprivation supplement rates on all age ranges,  

 the Teacher Pay & Pension supplement to remain only for 3&4 year old pupils 

(the supplement does not and is not intended to cover the full additional cost 

of a teacher).  

17. The funding rates for Early Years providers, as outlined in Table 2E, will form the 

basis of the funding formula calculation for 2024-2514 with a slightly larger 

contingency to provide future flexibility (if required) due to the extent of the changes 

to early years’ childcare entitlement over the next 18 months. 

 

18. The proposed rates are set at the maximum of what the LA has modelled as 

affordable based on estimates from a combination of the indicative Early Years 

NFF allocations and local intelligence of actual reported number of hours delivered 

during 2023-24.  

 

19. Any variations to the final allocations are reported to the DfE and may result in an 

adjustment in the form of clawback of unused funding or additional payments for 

new childcare places. 

 

 

 

 

                                            
14 These rates may change following the final allocations received in July 2024 based on January 2024 PTE 

census numbers 

37



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

22 

 

 Table 2E:  Early Years Single Funding Formula  

 

 

20. Early Years Pupil Premium rate for all age groups is set at £0.68 per hour, the 

Disability Access Funding rate for all age groups at £2,000 per year and the 3 and 

4 year old rate to distribute the TPAG funding is set at £0.40 per hour. 

 

21. The indicative Supplementary Maintained Nursery Funding is £1.492m, although 

there is a well-established downward trend in MNS 3&4 year old numbers, so the 

final allocation is expected to be lower.  Southwark’s maintained nursery schools 

will determine how they want this distributed. 

 

Hourly Rate PTE Funding

Hourly Rate Received 7.60 4,923.64               21,329,208            

Universal Base Rate 6.21 4,269.48               15,112,679            84%

Targeted - Deprivation 0.48 4,269.48               1,165,649             6%

Teachers Pay & Pension 0.21 4,269.48               514,102                3%

SENDIF 0.12 4,269.48               300,000                2%

Contingency 0.29 4,269.48               713,272                4%

5% Holdback 0.28 4,269.48               689,686                4%

Hourly Rate PTE Funding

Hourly Rate Received 10.97 1,321.52               8,263,332             

Universal Base Rate 9.02 913.90                  4,698,725             86%

Targeted - Deprivation 0.69 913.90                  359,329                7%

Teachers Pay & Pension

SENDIF 0.39 913.90                  203,000                4%

Contingency 0.56 913.90                  289,801                5%

5% Holdback 0.31 913.90                  163,670                3%

Hourly Rate PTE Funding

Hourly Rate Received 14.98 370.23 3,161,246             

Universal Base Rate 12.38 230.55                  1,626,920             79%

Targeted - Deprivation 1.09 230.55                  143,837                7%

Teachers Pay & Pension

SENDIF 0.11 230.55                  15,000                  1%

Contingency 0.92 230.55                  121,198                6%

5% Holdback 0.47 230.55                  61,644                  3%

26,178,513            

519,323                

158,340                

1,491,668             

28,347,844            

Per Pupil Hourly Funding

Early Years Pupil Premium

Disability Access Fund

Maintained Nursery School Supplementary Funding

TOTAL EARLY YEARS BLOCK FORECAST

Funding Elements
 3 and 4 year olds

Funding Elements
2 year olds

Funding Elements
Under 2 year olds 

38



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

23 

 

22. LAs are required to establish a Special Educational Needs & Disability Inclusion 

Fund (SENDIF) budget to work with providers to address the needs of individual 

children with SEND who are taking up the 3 and 4 year old entitlements. From April 

2024 this requirement will be extended to children taking up the 2 year-old 

entitlement, and from September 2024 to children taking up the under-2 

entitlement.  

 

23. For 2024-25, the SENDIF budget has increased to £518,000 to address the 

expansion in Early Years provision (supplemented by £100k from the High Needs 

Block).  It is expected that LA’s will pass the majority of their SENDIF to providers 

on a case by case basis, but it can also be used to fund specialist SEN services.  

 

24. The LA retains a proportion of the Early Years Block (at a maximum of 5% of the 

for 3 and 4 year olds universal and extended entitlement budget) in order to meet 

its statutory duties in respect of early education and childcare as set out in the 

Childcare Act of 2016 and related guidance.  In 2024-25 that will be set at £915k 

and funds the central LA services outlined in Table 2F. 

 
Table 2F:  2024-25 Early Years Block Central Retention  

Service Description 
Allocated 

Funding 

Early Years 

Teams Staffing 

 manages the free early education offer process, 

including termly headcount/claims process, funding to 

early years settings and promoting the free 

entitlement to parents.  

 provides information, advice, and support to the 150 

early years group care settings and 350 childminders 

in Southwark.  

 provides information, advice, and support to schools 

in relation to the Early Years Foundation Stage 

£579,000 

Early Help 

Service  

 delivers whole family approach and supports the 

integration of Under 5s work within LA commissioned 

Children & Family Centres (CFCs)  

 ensures that all children and adults within a 

household are offered support. 

£336,000 

Total Early Years Block Central Retention £915,000 

 

CENTRAL SCHOOL SERVICES BLOCK 

 

25. The CSSB provides funding for LAs central functions on behalf of maintained 

schools and academies. While the LA proposes how much is spent on each of the 

headings, the Schools Forum makes the decision. In the event of a dispute, the 

DfE adjudicates.  If the Schools Forum disputes the amounts, it would need to 

consider the areas within the defined legislation where the LA needed to refocus 

its attention.  

39



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

24 

 

26. For some central services, including Education Management and Learning and 

Achievement, there is a cross-over of funding streams between CSSB, Schools 

Block central retentions and general fund.  

 

27. Table 2G sets out the distribution of the CSSB for 2024-25. 

 

Table 2G:  2024-25 CSSB Central Retentions 

Service Description 
Allocated 

Funding 

LA duties for all 

schools  

This relates to statutory and regulatory duties for all 

schools in the borough regardless of whether they 

are maintained, free or academies.  

£600,000 

Places in 

independent 

schools for non-

SEN pupils  

A contribution towards the educational costs of 

looked after children that Southwark is responsible 

for.  

£294,000 

Admissions  Admissions is a statutory LA responsibility and 

therefore funding cannot be delegated to schools to 

carry out this function.  

£463,000 

Servicing of 

Schools Forum  

Covers School Forum clerking costs.  £7,000 

DfE Licenses & 

Subscriptions  

Copyright licences which are negotiated centrally by 

the Secretary of State for all publicly funded schools.  

£246,000 

Additional 

statutory duties 

for all schools  

This relates to statutory and regulatory duties for all 

schools in the borough regardless of whether they 

are maintained, free or academies.  

£300,000 

Total CSSB Central Retentions £1,910,000 

 

PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS 

 

28. The SBS for maintained mainstream schools (primary and secondary) is notified 

to schools by the end of the February preceded the beginning of the new financial 

year and is based on the previous October’s pupil roll census data. Top up 

payments for high needs pupils are adjusted on a termly in arrears basis. 

 

29. Maintained special schools and maintained schools’ based special provision are 

also notified of the estimate of the financial year’s High Needs Block allocation 

before the beginning of the new financial year.  Top up payments are adjusted on 

a termly in arrears basis.  

 

30. In accordance with the Scheme for Financing Schools, maintained schools receive 

their monthly budget share payment of schools block and high needs block as 

follows:- 

 1/9th April 

 1/12th May to February 

 1/18th March  

40



Southwark DSG Funding Distribution  Appendix 2 

25 

 

31. The ESFA funds academies (including free schools, university technical colleges 

and special academies) on the same basis as maintained schools.  The relevant 

budget share for academies is deducted from the LA’s overall DSG allocation 

(recoupment) and allocations and payments are based on an academic year, 

compared with financial year for maintained schools. 

 

32. Maintained nursery schools and primary schools with nursery classes receive 

estimate of the year’s funding, get paid monthly with a termly payment to bring 

them up to funding levels based on actual participation rates. 

 

33. Private, voluntary and independent providers (PVIs) are notified of hourly rate 

changes each January and issued with an indicative budget statement for the next 

financial year towards the end of each financial year, detailing the level of funding 

received and a forecast for the following year. Payments are made on a termly 

basis (spring, summer, autumn), following the pupil census dates as prescribed by 

the DfE, supplemented by a headcount spreadsheet, with details of each eligible 

child and hours attendance for the relevant entitlements as at the census date.  

Qualifying providers15 are also paid a 50% advance payment at the beginning of 

each term.    

 

 

                                            
15 Providers that are not in debt to the Council and they have claimed funding in the previous term 

41



Additional Funding for Schools  Appendix 3 

26 

 

PUPIL PREMIUM GRANT 

 

1. Pupil Premium grant funding is allocated to LAs for two separate objectives: 

 

 raising the educational attainment of disadvantaged pupils of all abilities to 

help them reach their potential 

 

 providing support for children and young people with parents in the regular 

armed forces 

 

2. Each LA allocation is calculated by ESFA, based on Free School Meal (FSM) 

 

3. Ever 616 data from the previous October’s pupil census, and published in June.  

Pupil Premium grant is also allocated based on the number of looked-after children 

(LAC) supported by the LA. 

 

4. The LA must distribute the grant to each maintained school based on the number 

of pupils in year groups reception to year 11. 

 

5. In 2023-24, Southwark received £20.074m in Pupil Premium Grant for all schools 

(maintained and academies) for 15,492 eligible pupils. 

 

6. The funding rates for the 2024-25 pupil premium grant are detailed in the Table 

3A below.  

 

Table 3A:  2024-25 Pupil Premium rates 

  Funding Rates 

(per pupil) 

Primary Pupils  £1,480  

Secondary Pupils  £1,050  

Looked after Children  £2,570  

Children who ceased to be looked after  £2,570  

Service Children*  £340  

*Eligible service children attract this rate in addition to any other PP grant eligibility rate. 
 

7. Full guidance is available @ Pupil premium 2023-24: conditions of grant for local 

authorities. 

 

PRIMARY PE & SPORTS GRANT  

 

8. The Primary PE & Sports Grant is paid to schools with primary-age pupils to ensure 

all children have equal access to high-quality PE provision and opportunities to 

experience and participate in a wide range of sports and physical activities. 

                                            
16 recorded as eligible for FSM or have been recorded as eligible in the past 6 years 

42

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pupil-premium-allocations-and-conditions-of-grant-2023-to-2024/pupil-premium-2023-to-2024-conditions-of-grant-for-local-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pupil-premium-allocations-and-conditions-of-grant-2023-to-2024/pupil-premium-2023-to-2024-conditions-of-grant-for-local-authorities


Additional Funding for Schools  Appendix 3 

27 

 

9. Schools cannot use the funding for core-type school activities but to make 

additional and sustainable improvements to the PE, sport and physical activity they 

provide. 

 

10. Each LA’s funding is determined by using the previous January school census and 

for 2023-24, the amounts payable were: 

 

 schools with 16 or fewer eligible pupils receive £1,000 per pupil 

 

 schools with 17 or more eligible pupils receive £16,000 and an additional 

payment of £10 per pupil. 

 

11. The LA receives two payments (7/12 of the funding allocation in October and the 

balance in April) and pass this funding to maintained primary schools based on the 

number of pupils they have in years 1 to 6.  

 

12. In 2023-24, Southwark primary schools (maintained and academies) received 

£1.43m.  2024-25 allocations will be notified before March 2024. 

 

13. Full guidance is available @ PE and sport premium for primary schools. 

 

FREE SCHOOL MEALS 

 

14. All pupils in Southwark schools, from nursery to year 13, are entitled to free healthy 

school meals.  There are various funding streams that fund this entitlement, as 

outlined in Table 3B below. 

 

Table 3B:  School Meal Funding Streams 

Academic 
Year 

Families 
in receipt 
of certain 
benefits 

Nursery 
pupils 

Reception, 
Year 1 & 2 
(UIFSM) 

Years 3 to 6  
(Key Stage 2) 

Years  
7 to 13! 

2022/23 

DfE 
Southwark 

Council 
DfE 

Southwark 
Council 

 

2023/24 Greater 
London 

Authority 

Southwark 
Council 2024/25 

! for pupils from families who get Universal Credit but currently miss out on FSM due 
to earning over the national threshold (£7,400 a year as a family) 

15. In 2024-25, Southwark’s allocation within the DSG for FSM entitlement is £6.967m.  

In 2023-24, the additional grant for Universal Infant Free School Meals (UIFSM) 

for all primary schools (maintained and academies) was £2.565m and over the 

same period, the by Southwark Council allocated £0.440m for nursery and meals.  

The funding provided by the Greater London Authority is £3.634m for the 2023/24 

academic year. 

 

16. Full guidance is available @ Universal infant free school meals: 2023 to 2024. 

43

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/pe-and-sport-premium-for-primary-schools
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/universal-infant-free-school-meals-uifsm-2023-to-2024


Additional Funding for Schools  Appendix 3 

28 

 

RECOVERY PREMIUM 

 

17. The Recovery Premium is part of the government’s package of funding to support 

pupils whose education has been impacted by COVID-19.  The menu has been 

developed in line with the Education Endowment Foundation’s 3-tiered approach 

to help schools allocate spending across the following 3 areas: 

 

 supporting high-quality teaching, such as staff professional development 

 

 providing targeted academic support, such as tutoring 

 

 tackling non-academic barriers to academic success, such as difficulties 

with attendance, behaviour and social and emotional wellbeing. 

 

18. LA receive an allocation of recovery premium based on pupil premium eligibility in 

mainstream schools, special schools, PRUs and Hospital schools. For other 

eligible schools, and special educational needs units in mainstream schools, 

recovery premium allocations are based on all pupils registered at the school. 

   

19. Recovery premium for academic year 2023/24 is paid to LAs in four instalments in 

September 223; December 2023; March 2024 and June 2024 and passed on to 

eligible schools. 

 

20. The funding rates for the 2023/24 academic year Recovery Premium allocations 

are detailed in the Table 3C below with Southwark receiving £0.908m and 

£0.888m (for maintained and academies) in September and December 2023, 

respectively. 

 

Table 3C:  2023/24 Recovery Premium rates 

 Mainstream 

education 

(per pupil) 

Other eligible 

schools 

(per pupil) 

Minimum 

payment 

(per school) 

Primary £145 £290 £2,000 

Secondary £276 £552 £6,000 

 

21. Full guidance is available @ Recovery premium: overview. 

 

16-19 FUNDING  

 

22. A separate funding stream exists for young people aged 16 – 19, where the ESFA 

funds LAs, sixth-forms in schools and academies, special schools, special 

academies, sixth-form colleges, further education colleges, independent learning 

providers, special post-16 institutions and some higher education institutions 

(HEIs). These institutions are funded to provide study programmes for young 

people. 

44

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recovery-premium-funding/recovery-premium-funding


Additional Funding for Schools  Appendix 3 

29 

 

23. The funding covers students aged 16 to 19, students up to the age of 25 when they 

have an EHCP17, 14- to 16 year-olds who are directly enrolled into eligible FE 

institutions and home educated students of compulsory school age at any FE 

college.  

 

24. Each institution’s funding allocation, based on a national funding formula, is 

calculated each academic year.  Special schools and special academies are 

funded based on place numbers only.  LAs pass the 16-19 funding on to the 

relevant institutions, in full. 

 

25. In 2023/24, Southwark’ 16-19 funding allocation for maintained settings is 

£2.998m. 

 

26. Full guidance is available @ 16 to 19 funding: how it works. 

 

TEACHERS PAY ADDITIONAL GRANT 

 

27. In 2023-24 the new Teachers Pay additional grant (TPAG) grant was introduced 

to support schools with the September 2023 teachers pay increase. This grant is 

continuing into 2024-25 for the full financial year, before the funding is rolled into 

the DSG funding for 2025-26.  

 

28. Allocations for 2024-25 will be calculated using twelve sevenths of the funding 

rates in 2023-24 and is being split between mainstream schools, special schools 

and AP, early years, and 16 to 19 provision.  

 

29. The ESFA will pay the funding to LA who then pay maintained mainstream schools 

at the published rates for individual schools. The DfE will publish school level 

allocations of the mainstream schools’ portion of TPAG for the 2024-25 financial 

year in May 2024.  

 

30. For 2024-25 maintained special schools and AP settings will continue to receive a 

separate allocation, following consultation and agreement about the method of 

distribution. New for 2024-25, maintained Hospital schools will receive a separate 

allocation to the other specialist settings. 

 

31. Southwark received £2.606m for mainstream schools and £0.292m for special 

schools for the 2023/24 academic year.  

 

32. The TPAG will not continue as a separate grant in 2024-25 for early years since 

that funding has been rolled into the core early years funding instead.  Details for 

the post-16 TPAG for academic year 2024-25 will be announced in due course. 

 

                                            
17 Paid at the rate of £6,000 per place by the ESFA, from deductions(recoupment) made from LA’s High Needs 

Block with ‘top up’ funding is paid directly by the LA 

45

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/16-to-19-funding-how-it-works


Additional Funding for Schools  Appendix 3 

30 

 

33. Full guidance is available @ Teachers' pay additional grant for 2023 to 2024. 

 

CAPITAL FUNDING 

 

34. The DfE allocate capital funding for maintained schools in the form of: 

 school condition allocations (SCA), with funds paid to eligible bodies 

responsible for maintaining school buildings; and 

 devolved formula capital (DFC) which is allocated for individual schools and 

other eligible institutions to spend on capital projects that meet their own 

priorities.   

 

35. SCA and DFC funding for community schools is paid to the LA, the former allocated 

according to need and the latter distributed to individual schools.  Funding for 

Voluntary Aided (VA) schools is paid to the relevant VA group18. 

 

36. In addition, the LA receives High Needs Provision Capital Allocations (HNPCA) to 

support the provision of new places and improve existing provision for children with 

special educational needs and disabilities or requiring alternative provision. 

 

37. Table 3D details Southwark’s capital allocations for 2023-24 financial year.  There 

have been no announcements regarding 2024-25 LA capital allocations 

 

Table 3D:  2023-24 Capital Allocations 

 DFC SCA HNPCA 

(2021-24) 

Southwark Council £354,712 £2,088,794 £12,604,595 

Diocese of Southwark  £747,836 £5,135,518  

Archdiocese of Southwark £958,220 £6,961,002  

 

Full guidance is available @ School capital funding. 

 

                                            
18 Diocese of Southwark or Archdiocese of Southwark 

46

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/teachers-pay-additional-grant-2023-to-2024
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/school-capital-funding


  1  

  

  

    

  

Item No.   

7 

  

Classification:  

Open  

Date:  

22 February 2024  

Meeting Name:  

Education and Local  

Economy Scrutiny  

Commission  

  

Report title:  

  

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny  

Commission Work Programme 2023-24  

  

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:  
  

N/A  

From:  

  

Scrutiny Officer 

  

  

RECOMMENDATIONS  

  

1. That the education and local economy scrutiny commission note the work 

programme as at 22 February 2024 attached as Appendix 1.  

  

2. That the education and local economy scrutiny commission consider the 

addition of new items or allocation of previously identified items to specific 

meeting dates of the commission.  

  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION   

  

3. The general terms of reference of the scrutiny commissions are set out in 

the council’s constitution (overview and scrutiny procedure rules - 

paragraph 5).  The constitution states that:  

  

Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will:  

  

a) review and scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with 

the discharge of any of the council’s functions  

  

b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the 

cabinet and council officers both in relation to individual decisions and 

over time in areas covered by its terms of reference  

  

c) review and scrutinise the performance of the council in relation to its 

policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas  

  

d) question members of the cabinet and officers about their decisions and 

performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and 

47
Agenda Item 7



  2  

  

  

    

targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, 

initiatives or projects and about their views on issues and proposals 

affecting the area  

  

e) assist council assembly and the cabinet in the development of its budget 

and policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues  

  

f) make reports and recommendations to the cabinet and or council 

assembly arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process  

  

g) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants  

  

h) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 

national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are 

enhanced by collaborative working  

  

i) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area 

and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the scrutiny 

committee and local people about their activities and performance  

  

j) conduct research and consultation on the analysis of policy issues and 

possible options  

  

k) question and gather evidence from any other person (with their consent)  

  

l) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance 

community participation in the scrutiny process and in the development 

of policy options  

  

m) conclude inquiries promptly and normally within six months  

  

4. The work programme document lists those items which have been or are 

to be considered in line with the commission’s terms of reference.  

  

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION   

  

5. Set out in Appendix 1 (Work Programme) are the issues the education and 

local economy scrutiny commission is due to consider in 2023-24.  

  

6. The work programme is a standing item on the education and local 

economy scrutiny commission agenda and enables the commission to 

consider, monitor and plan issues for consideration at each meeting. 

 

 

 

48



  3  

  

  

    

7. As of 20 May 2023 the commission also now has within in its remit the 

cabinet portfolio elements listed below:  

  

Children, Education & Refugees (Councillor Jasmine Ali, Deputy 

Leader and Cabinet Member) 

 

 Early years and childcare – including children and family centres, early 
years education, childminders and nurseries  

 Schools – including school standards, inclusion, places and admissions; 
special education needs; free healthy school and nursery meals and 
fruit; healthy schools and Southwark’s Let's Go Zero schools network  

 Further, higher and adult education – including English for speakers 
of other languages (ESOL), adult literacy and numeracy; and 
scholarships  

 Children’s social care – including children in care and care leavers, 
fostering and adoption, support for children with disabilities and their 
families; and child safeguarding 

 Family support – including parenting programmes, the council’s sure-
start for teenagers service and support for families who are providing 
unpaid care for a child with a disability or health condition, including 
respite care  

 Youth offending services. 
 

Jobs, Skills & Business (Councillor Martin Seaton) 

 

 Increasing employment - support to find a job or start a new carer; 
careers advice and work experience; paid internships; supporting young 
people and care leavers’ into employment, education and training; 
relationship with Jobcentre Plus; supporting businesses to engage with 
schools and colleges (including the Education Business Alliance) 

 Vocational Skills - including apprenticeships, vocational training and 
skills centres  

 Businesses support - for local businesses, cooperatives, social 
enterprises and entrepreneurs; increasing procurement from local 
businesses; and relationships with local business groups and Business 
Improvement Districts. 

 High streets – including town centre action plans, Thriving Highstreets 
Fund, markets  

 Commercial property – management, leasing and rent setting of the 
council’s retail and commercial units, office accommodation and related 
property  

 Industrial strategy - growing industries that generate good jobs and 
wider value for our community, including green industries, life sciences 
and creative and cultural industries  

 Living Wage - promoting the London Living Wage employers  

 Workers’ rights - promoting good employment practices and equality 
and diversity at work and trade union membership. 

49



  4  

  

  

    

Young People (Councillor Portia Mwangangye) 

 

 Increasing the voice and influence of young people  

 Southwark Youth Parliament  

 The council’s in-house and commissioned youth services  

 Positive Futures Fund  

 Southwark Young Advisors. 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  

  

Background Papers  Held At  Contact  

Education and Local 
Economy Scrutiny 
Commission agenda and 
minutes   
  

Southwark 

Council Website   

Amit Alva  

Amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk   

Link: 

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=550&Year=0  

  

  

  

APPENDICES  

  

No.  Title  

Appendix 1  Work Programme 2023-24  

  

  

AUDIT TRAIL  

  

Lead Officer  Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 

Report Author  Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 

Version  Final  

Dated   14 February 2024  

Key Decision?  No  

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /   

CABINET MEMBER  

Officer Title  Comments Sought  Comments Included  

Director of Law and Governance  No  No  

Strategic Director of  

Finance and Governance  

No  No  

Cabinet Member   No  No  

Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team  14 February 2024 

 

50

mailto:Amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=550&Year=0


 Appendix 1 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission Work Programme – 2023/24 

 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19 July 2023 

 
Community Wealth Building (CWB) in Southwark 
 
To evaluate Southwark’s strength and weaknesses 
regarding Community Wealth Building - according to 
the five pillars: 
 

 Plural ownership of the economy 

 Making financial power work for local places 

 Fair employment and just labour markets 

 Progressive procurement of goods and services 

 Socially productive use of land and property 
 

 
Commission received a report from Southwark’s 
Local Economy team on council’s role in 
Community Wealth Building (CWB). Officers- Nick 
Wolff, Principal Strategy Officer, Chief Executive’s 
and Danny Edwards, Head of Economy. 

 
School Amalgamations and Closures in Southwark 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Commission received feedback/report from 
Freddy Vanson, District & Branch Joint Secretary, 
National Education Union (NEU) Southwark 
Branch, on School Amalgamations and Closures 
in Southwark especially with regards to 
redundancies with a focus on disproportionate 
redundancies and disciplinary amongst Black 
Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) school staff.  
 

51



 Appendix 1 
 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19 October 2023 
 

 
St Mary Magdalene C of E Primary School (SMMS) 

 Demographics of the school 

 Avoiding closure and amalgamation  

 Council’s role and communication 

 Suggestions to improve council strategy on 
falling rolls 
 

 
To hear from Anna Harding, Head teacher and 
Sonia Phippard, Chair of Governors on the plans 
for closure/amalgamation of the St Mary 
Magdalene C of E Primary School. 
 

 
The Restructure of Kintore Way Nursery School and 
Children's Centre. 

 Financial Challenges 

 Mitigation Strategies 

 Potential impact on the school's educational 
programs and services 

 Plans to collaborate or integrate with other 
educational institutions 

 Prioritising the interests of students and the 
community throughout this process 

 

 
To receive a report from Matthew Waterfall and 
Sasha Das Gupta from the National Association of 
Headteachers (NAHT) on the restructure of 
Kintore Way Nursey School. 

 
Employment for young people in Southwark. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To receive a report from Patrick Doherty, Principal 
Strategy Officer and Danny Edwards, Head of 
Economy on youth employment.  

52



 Appendix 1 
 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5 December 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Education, Health Care Plan (EHCP) process, 
demand and timeliness. 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
To receive a report from Alasdair Smith, Director, 
Children & Families, Children's and Adults' 
Services, Anna Chiva, Assistant Director for 
SEND, Children and Adult Services and Michael 
Crowe, Service Development Manager, Children's 
and Adults' Services on EHCP demand, process, 
timeliness and programme improvements. 

 
An update on St Mary Magdalene C of E Primary 
School and Kintore Way Nursery School and 
Children's Centre. 
 

 
To receive a verbal/written update from Councillor 
Jasmine Ali, Cabinet Member for Children, 
Education & Refugees and  Alasdair Smith, 
Director, Children & Families, Children's and 
Adults' Services on  St Mary Magdalene C of E 
Primary School and Kintore Way Nursery School. 
 

 
 
Youth Employment- St Giles Trust 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
To hear from Carleigh Grogan from St Giles Trust 
on Youth Employment programs and the council’s 
role in these programs. 

53



 Appendix 1 
 

Meeting Agenda Items Comment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30 January 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Proposed Amalgamation of St. Jude's and Charlotte 
Sharman Primary Schools 

 
Proposed Amalgamation of St. Jude's and 
Charlotte Sharman Primary Schools 

 

 Impact of school closures and amalgamations on: 
 

 Black and Asian Minority Ethnic (BAME) school 
staff and pupils 

 Male and Female members of school staff 
(data breakup) 

 LGBTQ staff 
 Disabled members of school staff 
 Senior Leadership Team in schools 
 School Support Staff (low-paid) 
 Governors 
 Schools exclusions data. 

 
 BAME school staff disciplinary data 

 Flexible working requests in schools (job-

shares, part-time) 

 

 
To receive a report from Alasdair Smith, Director 
of Children & Families, Children's and Adults' 
Services and Shereen Moussa, Head of Schools 
Human Resources, Children's and Adults' 
Services and the impact of school closures and 
amalgamations 
 
 
 
 

 East Street Market renovation project To receive an update from R. Lindon and Shade 
Abdul on the East Street Market renovation 
project. 
 

 Cabinet Member Interview- Jobs Skills and 
Business ( Local Economy) 

To interview Councillor Martin Seaton the Cabinet 
Member for Jobs, Skills and Business covering a 
holistic overview of key strategies and projects 
under the portfolio, supported by Danny Edwards, 
Head of Economy. 

54



 Appendix 1 
 

Meetings Agenda items Comment 

 
22 February 2024 

 

 Report reviewing amalgamation of Bird in Bush 

(BiB) school 

 

 
 

 Interview with Cabinet Member for Children, 

Education & Refugees.  

 
 Nursey Schools Funding 
 Overview of maintained nurseries (data), 

by demand in ward 
 Overview of the SEND strategy- 

including plan and strategy for funding 
Under 5 SEND provision 
 

 
To hear from James Robinson, Executive Head 
teacher, Bird in Bush School and to receive a 
report from Richard Hunter, Senior Adviser, 
Children and Adult Services on amalgamation of 
the school. 
 
To interview Councillor Jasmine Ali on key 
strategies and projects under her Cabinet Member 
Portfolio; and also to receive reports on Nursery 
Schools Funding, Overview of maintained 
nurseries and SEND Strategy for Under 5 
provision; supported by Kate Bingham, Finance 
Manager, Neil Gordon-Orr, Strategic Manager 
Education and Anna Chiva Asst. Director For 
SEND  

 Upcoming 
Meetings 

Agenda items yet to be scheduled Comment 

 
14 March 2024 
 
1 May 2024 
(provisional) 

 

 School closures and amalgamation- experience 

from interviewing parents, teachers and head 

teachers 

 

 Update on Children’s Safeguarding Partnership 

in Southwark since its evolution and restructuring 

in 2022-2023. 

 

 Scrutiny report and recommendations 

 
All agenda items to be confirmed. 

55



 Appendix 1 
 

 

 

 Community Wealth Building (CWB) focusing on  

procurement, social value and employment for 

young people 

 

 Policies for Southwark small and medium 

enterprises (SME) to help boost the local 

economy sector in Southwark especially planning 

and regeneration projects. 

56



 

57



  

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission     
  

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24  

  

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)  

  

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Amit Alva Tel: 020 7525 

0496  
  

  

Name  No of 
copies  

Name  No of 
copies  

  
Electronic Copy  
  
Members:  
  

  Councillor Chloe Tomlinson (Chair) 
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor  Joseph Vambe 
Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese 

 
Education Representatives  
Martin Brecknell                                                     
Lynette Murphy O’Dwyer  
  
Parent Governor Representatives  
Marcin Jagodzinski  
Jonathan Clay 
  
Reserves Members  
  
Councillor Maggie Browning 
Councillor Bethan Roberts 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Victoria Mills 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Sunil Chopra 
Councillor Adam Hood  

  
  Joseph Brown – Senior Cabinet Officer  
  

  
Euan Cadzow-Webb - Liberal Democrat  
Group Office  
 
Sarauniya Shehu- Cabinet Office Manager 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  
Dated: February 2024 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

58


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	6 Impact of school closures and amalgamations - Human Resources Data

	5 Report reviewing amalgamation of Bird in Bush school
	6 Interview with Cabinet Member for Children, Education & Refugees.
	7 Work Programme 2023-2024
	Appendix 1. Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission Work Programme 2023-2024

	 Distribution List 2021/22
	DistributionList EdLoEcSC 2023-24


